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Back in the Countryé 
   Bell Acres Stories  
              By Debby Rabold 
 

 

 
 

Country Schools 
 
Following paths once used by native peoples, it was during the late 1790s and early 1800s that families began 
venturing into the wilderness North of the Ohio River. 
  
There were no schools, churches or stores among the isolated farmsteads. Schooling might consist of simple 
lessons in reading and writing taught by parents who themselves often had a limited formal education. At a time 
when printed materials were scarce and costly, the family Bible was often the only reading material found in 
homes.   
 
The earliest rural schools were subscription schools. This type of school was operated by an individual who 
collected a fee for each child who attended classes, which were usually offered for four months during the 
winter when children were not needed to work in the fields. The quality of teaching and content varied from 
school to school as there were no standards or oversight.  
 
The BƛƎ {ŜǿƛŎƪƭŜȅ /ǊŜŜƪ ±ŀƭƭŜȅΩǎ ŦƛǊǎǘ ǎŎƘƻƻƭ ǿŀǎ a subscription school opened by Squire John Neely circa 1820. 
Class was taught in a crude log building opposite what is now Linbrook Park for students who lived ŀǎ ŦŀǊ ŀǎ άǎƛȄ 
ǘƻ ŜƛƎƘǘ ƳƛƭŜǎ ƛƴ ŜǾŜǊȅ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƛƻƴΧέ  Subjects were limited to spelling, New Testament readings and arithmetic. 
Penmanship was practiced with sharpened goose quills ŀƴŘ ǇƻƪŜōŜǊǊȅ ƧǳƛŎŜΦ {ǉǳƛǊŜ bŜŜƭȅΩǎ ǎǳŎŎŜǎǎƻǊǎ ǿƻǳƭŘ 
add grammar and geography to the curriculum. For many years, this was the extent of formal schooling available 
to children fortunate enough to have parents who could afford the subscription fees.  
 

 
 
 
{ǉǳƛǊŜ bŜŜƭȅΩǎ ƭƻƎ ǎŎƘƻƻƭ ƻƴ .ƛƎ {ŜǿƛŎƪƭŜȅ /ǊŜŜƪ wƻŀŘ ǿƻǳƭŘ ƘŀǾŜ ŀǇǇŜŀǊŜŘ 
much the same as this 1780s-era log academy that opened near Canonsburg, 
Pennsylvania and later became Jefferson College. Now restored, the building 
stands on the campus of Washington & Jefferson College in Washington, 
Pennsylvania. 

 
                  

 
Realizing the need for educated citizens, Pennsylvania passed legislation in 1834 that allowed municipalities to 
levy taxes for the purpose of building public schools. Until the mid-twentieth century, when consolidations 
became the norm, each township and borough was its own school district with its own school directors. 
Beginning in 1854, in an attempt to bring a level of uniformity to public education, Allegheny County appointed 
a superintendent to oversee the large number of municipal school districts within its borders. Interestingly, the 
majority of teachers at the time were male. Only later, did women begin to dominate the teaching field. 
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hƴŜ ǎǳǇŜǊƛƴǘŜƴŘŜƴǘ ǿǊƻǘŜΣ άFemale teachers -  It affords me pleasure to say, that generally our females are 
succeeding very well, and are rapidly gaining favor with the public, and are receiving that encouragement which 
is absolutely necessary for them to succeed, doubt not that in the future they will be a very strong and efficient 
ŜƭŜƳŜƴǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǘŜŀŎƘƛƴƎ ŦƻǊŎŜ ƻŦ ƻǳǊ ŎƻǳƴǘǊȅΦέ 
 
The first evidence of a school in what later became Bell Acres Borough appears on an 1851 Ohio Township map. 
An un-named school house is shown at the corner of Backbone and Camp Meeting roads. In 1854, the newly 
created Sewickley Township sought permission from the State to sell a schoolhouse, presumably the same one.  

 
A different Camp Meeting Road schoolhouse appears on an 
1862 map. Most often, schools took the name of a nearby 
property owner and this particular school, which was once 
known as the Means or Hockenberger school, is today 
remembered as the Jenny School. The remodeled 
schoolhouse is 
currently the 
Bell Acres 

Municipal 
Building (left). 
 

By 1876, a second school had been built on Camp Meeting, near 
the Sevin Road intersection. Once known as the Creese School, it 
was renamed the Friday School and is today a remodeled private 
residence (right).  
 
In 1933, the Jenny and Friday schools were among forty-three 
remaining one-room schools in Allegheny County. Students in 
grades one through four attended the Jenny School while older students in grades five through eight attended 
the Friday School. Upon completing the eighth grade, students were given a county administered exam to 
determine if they would graduate. After receiving a diploma, the student had no further obligation to attend 
school. If, however, he or she wished to go on to high school, it was as a tuition student with the home district 
covering the cost and the family providing transportation. Sewickley Township students had the choice of 
attending Sewickley, Leetsdale or Ambridge high schools. Unfortunately, it was the lack of transportation that 
prevented many young people from continuing their education.   
 
Municipalities gradually replaced their aged one-room schools with new multi-room schools in which each grade 
level not only enjoyed its own classroom and teacher, but also had the benefit of indoor plumbing!  Despite its 
advantages, consolidation was often opposed by taxpayers who felt one-room schools were perfectly fine. 
Facing years of opposition, it was not until the 1936-37 school year that school directors in Franklin Township 
[Franklin Park] with the help of federal funding were able to close their five one-room schools and open a 
consolidated school. Before then, some Franklin families chose to enroll their children as tuition students in 
aŎ/ŀƴŘƭŜǎǎ ¢ƻǿƴǎƘƛǇΩǎ consolidated Ingomar School where there were only two grades in each classroom, 
instead of the usual eight found in the one-room schools. 
 
Because a majority of school districts did not have high schools and lacked the resources to offer anything more 
than a rudimentary education, the State Legislature passed a bill in 1947 requiring counties to create 
administrative  units  for  public schools,  thus enabling  districts  to  better  utilize their combined  facilities and  
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resources to provide students with more educational opportunities. Allegheny County was charged with the 
task of organizing 130+ independent school districts into forty administrative units.  
 
As early as 1952, Allegheny County and the State Board of Education indicated they wanted the eleven Sewickley 
Valley communities and their ten school districts to become one administrative school district. The plan included 
Sewickley, Leetsdale, Edgeworth, Osborne, Haysville, Glenfield and Sewickley Heights boroughs with Aleppo, 
Leet, Sewickley [Bell Acres] and Sewickley Heights [Sewickley Hills] townships. The idea was not well received 
by the districts and could not be implemented without their unanimous approval.  
 
The issue facing most districts was whether to come together as a Jointure or a Union. Jointures meant districts 
would share facilities and resources while keeping their own school boards and control of their taxes. One 
member from each of the districts would sit on a joint board. A Union meant there would be only one school 
board, which would set a uniform tax for the entire district. Arriving at a decision was a long and difficult process. 
Change was hard.  
 
Both Sewickley and Leetsdale had high schools as well as ŀ ƭƻƴƎ ǎǘŀƴŘƛƴƎ ŎƛǾƛŎ ǊƛǾŀƭǊȅΦ {ŜǿƛŎƪƭŜȅΩǎ ǇǊƻǇƻǎŀƭ ǘƻ 
form a Union district and raise taxes to build a new high school was rejected by others whose taxes would have 
as much as doubled. Under this plan, {ŜǿƛŎƪƭŜȅ ¢ƻǿƴǎƘƛǇΩs taxes would have risen by 60%. 
 
Leetsdale countered by proposing a five-district jointure of itself and Edgeworth with Sewickley, Leet and 
Sewickley Heights townships. This proposal was rejected by the County since any plan had to include all ten 
districts in order to receive State and County approval.  
 
It was in July 1956 that the Quaker Valley Joint 
{ŎƘƻƻƭ 5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘ ōŜŎŀƳŜ !ƭƭŜƎƘŜƴȅ /ƻǳƴǘȅΩǎ 
tenth jointure. Sewickley, Leetsdale, Sewickley 
Heights, Edgeworth-Heights, Glenfield, and 
hǎōƻǊƴŜ ŎǊŜŀǘŜŘ ŀƴ άƻǇŜƴ ŜƴŘŜŘέ ƧƻƛƴǘǳǊŜ 
meaning others could join at a later time. Each 
retained its own school board with operating 
costs apportioned by assessed property 
valuations and the number of pupils from each 
community. Leetsdale High School (right) 
became the new Quaker Valley High School and 
the former Sewickley High School (below) 
became a junior high. Haysville joined the 
district in September after closing the last one-
room school in all of Allegheny County.  

 
At the same time, the 
new district agreed to 
accept tuition students 
from Leet, Aleppo and 

Sewickley townships. Not until April 1958 did 
the townships join the district as members, thus 
completing the Quaker Valley School District. 
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School Stories 
 
When it ceded from Ohio Township in 1854, Sewickley Township included all of what is now Bell Acres, 
Edgeworth, Leet and Leetsdale as well as portions of  Sewickley Heights and Sewickley Hills.  Sewickley Borough 
left Ohio Township the previous year. 
 
!ƭƭŜƎƘŜƴȅ /ƻǳƴǘȅΩǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ǎŎƘƻƻƭ ȅŜŀǊ ŜƴŘƛƴƎ WǳƴŜ сΣ мурфΣ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜǎ ǘƘŜ ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴΥ  
 
Sewickley Township School District: 

¶ 6 schools averaging 4 months of classes 

¶ 5 male teachers earning an average $25/month 

¶ 1 female teacher earning $20/month 

¶ 101 male students and 68 female students 
 
Sewickley Borough School District: 

¶ 3 schools averaging 6 months of classes 

¶ 1 male teacher earning $40.00/month 

¶ 2 female teachers earning $22.50/month 

¶ 107 male students and 96 female students 
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Magee & Blackburn Two-Room Schools 
 
Until Sewickley Heights Township (Sewickley Hills) and Edgeworth Borough formed the Edgeworth-Sewickley 
Heights School District in 1950, students attended schools on Magee and Blackburn roads in Sewickley Heights 
Township.  Magee School, which housed grades five through eight, closed in 1949. Blackburn School, which 
housed the younger students closed the following year. Taxes were then increased to pay for two buses needed 
to transport pupils to Edgeworth School, which featured ten classrooms and an auditorium. During the 1950s, 
Sewickley Heights Borough annexed acreage from adjacent municipalities, which is why the Blackburn School 
site is now located within that borough. The former site of the Magee School is now part of the  Sewickley Hills 
Borough Park. The Blackburn School site is currently used for church parking. 

                                     Magee School                                                                 Blackburn students standing in their schoolyard  
                                                                                                                               opposite the Blackburn Methodist Church. 

 

 

 
Glen Mitchell 

School 
 
By 1933, the Glen 
Mitchell School on 
Glen Mitchell Road 
in Aleppo 
Township was one 
of the few 
remaining one-
room schools in 
Allegheny County. There was one first grader and two eighth graders out of twenty-five students that year. The 
school had no plumbing and water had to be carried from a nearby farm. Reportedly, many of the parents were 
jobless because of the Great Depression.  
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Jenny and Friday Schools 
 
As new municipalities were created from the original Sewickley Township, schools once belonging to the 
township became the property of the newly created school districts in which they were located. The Jenny and 
Friday schools stood in what remained of Sewickley Township [Bell Acres].  
 
Box Socials were popular community events that were used as fundraisers for schools and churches. They 
involved young women preparing a picnic style meal for two that was placed into a decorated shoe box along 
ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ȅƻǳƴƎ ƭŀŘȅΩǎ ƴŀƳŜΦ ¢ƘŜ ŎƻƭƻǊŦǳƭ ōƻȄŜǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǘƘŜƴ auctioned to the young men in the audience. Spirited 
bidding ensued, with shouts and cheers urging higher and  higher  bids.  Only  after opening  his chosen box, did  
the young man discover with whom he would be sharing his meal.  

  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                            Jenny School students 

Social a Success 
   A box and pie social was held by the pupils of the 
WŜƴƴȅ {ŎƘƻƻƭ aƻƴŘŀȅ ŜǾŜƴƛƴƎΧ¢ƘŜ ƴŜǘ ǇǊƻŎŜŜŘǎ ƻŦ 
the social amounted to $56.    This money is to be 
used by the pupils to purchases a new bell for their 
school.                     Pittsburgh Press March 17, 1920 

 

/ƻƴǎǘŀōƭŜ {ǇŜƴŘǎ ¢ƛƳŜ !ƴƴƻȅƛƴƎ ΨtŜǘǘŜǊǎΩ 
   Lƴ ǘƘŜ ǎǇǊƛƴƎ ŀ ȅƻǳƴƎ ƳŀƴΩǎ ŦŀƴŎȅ ƭƛƎƘǘƭȅ ǘǳǊƴǎ ǘƻ 
thoughts of love ς but in Sewickley Twp. those 
troubled thusly are learning to be careful as the 
result of an edict passed recently by the school 
board ordering Constable C. W. Profater to keep the 
άǇŜǘǘŜǊǎέ ƻǳt of the Jenny school yard. 
   The board was forced to adopt this policy as the 
result of complaints on the part of those residing in 
the neighborhood of the building. The dark 
ǇƭŀȅƎǊƻǳƴŘ ƳŀŘŜ ŀ ǇŜǊŦŜŎǘ ǊŜƴŘŜȊǾƻǳǎΧ 
   About 18 couples have been apprehended so far 
ŀƴŘ ŀ ƴǳƳōŜǊ ǿƛƭƭ ƎŜǘ ƘŜŀǊƛƴƎǎ ƛƴ {ŜǿƛŎƪƭŜȅΧ¢ƘŜȅ 
will be charged with trespassing. A few are 
Pittsburgh couples. 
   άLǘ ōŜŀǘǎ ƳŜ ǿƘȅ ȅƻǳƴƎ Ŧƻƭƪǎ ŦǊƻƳ Pittsburgh 
would desert havens like Schenley and Highland 
parks for a two-by-ŦƻǳǊ ǎŎƘƻƻƭȅŀǊŘΣέ ǎŀƛŘ tǊƻŦŀǘƻǊΦ 
                                           Post-Gazette April 25, 1930 


